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Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of
Alder Residency Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Alder Residency Private Limited (‘the
Company’}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit And Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended on that date, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information (‘the Financial Statements’).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS') and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the State of
Affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its Loss and Other Comprehensive income, Changes in
Equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {'SAs’) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial
Statements,

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw attention to Note 50 of the financial statements, which describes the basis for preparing the
financial statements on a going concern basis, despite the reported losses and erosion of capital. This
treatment is based on the application of revenue recognition principles under the applicable Ind AS and
the financial support committed by Kalpataru Limited (the 'Ultimate Holding Company'). Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
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10.

11,

12,

separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the Financial
Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be made avaitable to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the State of Affairs,
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and Cash Flows of the. Company in) conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection of the appropriate accounting software for
ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations including those related to retention of audit
logs; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to goingconcern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

13. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements.

14. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: '

14.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

14.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

14.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

14.4. Conclude on the appropriatenéss of the Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

14.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

15. Wecommunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

16. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

17. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the currentyear and aﬁgmecgfore the
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18.

19,

20,

21,

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial information pertaining to Company’s share in loss of 1 (One) LLP aggregating
to Rs. 196 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2025. The financial information pertaining to this entity have
been audited by other auditors whose reports are furnished to us and the Company’s share in loss of said
entity has been included in the accompanying financial statements are solely based on the report of other
auditors,

Attention is drawn to the fact that the audited financial statements of the Company for the corresponding
year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by predecessor auditors whose report dated 17 May 2024
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

21.1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

21.2. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 22.8
below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended).

21.3. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

21.4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act read with the relevant rules thereunder.

21.5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

21.6. The modification relating to the maintenance of books of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 21.2 above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph 22.8 below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014 (as amended).
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21.7. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial

21.8

22, With

Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Reportin ‘Annexure B’,

- In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration is
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year.

respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinicn and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

22.1
22.2

22.3.

22.4.

22.5.

22.6.

22,7,

22.8.

. The Company did not have any pending litigations as at 31 March 2025,

- The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 35 to the Financial Statements.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
orkind of funds) by the Company to orin any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures, that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representation under para 22.4 and 22.5 contain any material misstatement.

fn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly compliance with section 123 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same was operational throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software, except for the following observations:

a) The audit trail logs at the database level, which would capture direct data changes or modifications
to administrative rights, were not available for our verification, although restrictions on database
administrator access have been implemented using Privileged Access Management (PAM) solution
and with retention of log of recordings of any accessibility.
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Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance where the audit trail
feature was enabled, had been tampered with.

Additionally, the Company has preserved the audit trail in accordance with statutory record retention
requirements, to the extent where feature has been enabled, excluding audit trail logs at the database-
level.

For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimiji Kunverji & Co LLP)

W
D’f
(_Q)——D —_ "~
. Nt
Bharat Jain
Partner

ICAl Membership No: 100583
UDIN: 25100583BMKXJS$6410

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 May 2025
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Alder Residency Private

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 20 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report

of even date)

i. (a)

{b)

i (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’).

The Company does not have intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are
verified once in three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
no PPE were physically verified by the Management during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed
in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its PPE during the year.

Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the physical
verification of inventories has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management and, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate. We confirm that
discrepancies noticed were less than 10% in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any point of time during the
year, from banks or financial institutions.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
granted unsecured loans to companies and the details are mentioned in the following table:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Advances in the

Loans
nature of loans

Particulars Guarantees Security

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

Others |- | - | 19,950 | -
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

Others | - | - | 17,126 | -

fn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The company has
not made investments, provided guarantee or given security during the year.

There is no stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest on loans granted
by the company and the same are repayable on demand.
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vi.

vil.

viti,

(d) 1nour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, since all the loans are

{e)

(b)

(a)

repayable on demand, no amount is overdue in respect of loans.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, since loans granted
are repayable on demand, neither loans or advances in nature of loans have been renewed or
extended nor any fresh loans have been granted to settle the overdue of existing loans.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters. Out of the aforesaid loans as
mentioned in clause iii (a}, Rs. 19,950 Lakhs (i.e. 100% of Total Loans) were given to Related Parties
(as defined in section 2(76) of the Act) which are either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186(1) of the Act with respect to the loans given,
There are no investments made, guarantees given and security provided d uring the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year
in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies {Cost Records and Audit}) Rules, 2014 and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of
customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

We confirm that there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other statutory dues, which have not been deposited to/with the appropriate authority on
account of any dispute.

inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across any
transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayiment of dues to debenture holders or the
payment of interest thereon. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from financial
institutions, banks and government.
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Xi.

xil.

Xiil.

Xiv.

KV,

Xvi.

{b) Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,

(c)

(a)

we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans
at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not raised any loans on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3{ix){d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, paragraph
3(ix})(e) and {f) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further publicoffer (including debt
instruments) during the year.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares / fully / partly
/ optionally convertible debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or reported during the
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub
section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13
of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of
the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards. Section 177 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit system
and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act. Accordingly
paragraph xiv(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicabte to the Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities and
hence requirement of obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (‘CoR’) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 is hot applicable to the Company.

} v, 5
Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India %;{ gj‘?“““"ﬂfﬁd-')g& i
T:+91226143 7333 E:info@kkcllpin W: www.kkcllp.in LLPIN: AAP-2267 b

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India w



kkec & associates llp

Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

(c)

(d

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (‘CIC") as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India.

There is no CIC as part of the Group to which the Company belongs.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financialyear. The amount of cash loss is Rs. 2,830 Lakhs and Rs. 2,925 Lakhs incurred in the financial
year and in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly paragraph
3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities
having regard to the business cycle of the Company, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come te our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act pertaining to Corporate Social Respoensibility are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(a) & (b) of the order are not applicable to
the company.

For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

Gy

Bharat Jain

Partner

ICAI Membership No: 100583

UDIN: 25100583BMKXJS6410 J
e

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 May 2025
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Financial Statements of Alder Residency Private
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 21.7 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {*the Act’).

Opinion

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Alder
Residency Private Limited (‘the Company’) as at 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

2, In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2025, based on the internal controts over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {‘the
Guidance Note’).

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing (‘SA ), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. Those SAs
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

5. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
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including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

7. A company's internal financial controls with reference ta the Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

i

Bharat Jain
Partner

iCAl Membership No: 100583
UDIN: 25100583BMKXJ56410

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 May 2025
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Alder Residency Private Limited
CIN: U45201MH2088PTC 182570
Batlance Sheet As At 31 March, 2025

Assets
Non-current assets
(a} Property, plant and equipment
(b) Intangile Assets
{c} Financial assets
{i} Investments
(il Other financiat assets
(d) Non Current fax assets {riet}
{8) Deferred {ax assets
(f) Other nen-cusrent assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
{a) Inventories
(b} Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
{ii Cash and cash equivalents
{iiiy Bank balances other than {ii) above
(iv) Loans
{v} Others financial assets
{c} Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets
Equity and liabilities

Equity
{a) Equity share capita!
{b} Gther equity
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current labilities
(a) Provisions
(b) Other ron-current kiabilities
Total non-current liabilitios

Gurrent liabilities
(a} Financial liabilities
0] Eorruwiggs
(i} Trade payables
{A) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
{B) Total outstanding dues of crediters other
than micro enterprises and smak enterprises
(ifi) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(¢} Other cutrent liabifities
Total current liabifities

Total equity and liabilities
Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting
Palicies and accompanying Notes are an Integral
part of the Financial Statememts

Nate

44

W~ @t

ic
"
12
13

15
15

17
8

19

20

21

22

23
24
25

(¥'In lakhs)
As at As at.
21 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,606 1,115
4] o]
1 60
813 400
1.8%1 1,137
444 909
4,165 3,621
87,764 80,139
7.198 6,476
1,184 1,465
5,274 3,668
17,126 9,570
&1 5975
7,750 5,890
1,26,387 93,183
1,31,152 96,804
10 10
(6,319) (4,165)
{6,309) {4,155}
288 93
202 344
488 437
41,391 50,616
413 66
3,518 156
1,657 2,147
23 8
89,973 47,529
1,36,973 1,00,522
1,31,152 96,804

As per our report of even date
For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.105146WAW 1008

For and on behalf of the Board

Lees o

Bharat Jain beves_h Bhatt Lokesh Jain
Parner Directar Directar
Membership.No. 100583 (DIN; 08225382) {DIN: 06453254)
Mumbai Mumbai

Date: 22nd May,2025 Date: 22nd May,2025




Alder Residency Private Limited
CIN: U45201 MH2008PTC182570
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31 March, 2025,

(X In'lakhs, except stated otherwise}

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 26 - -
Other income 27 317 108
Interest income 28 3,023 1,348
Total income 3,340 1,456
Expenses
Cost of sales and other operalional expenses 29 - -
Employee benefits expense 30 1,351 599
Finance costs 31 2,930 1,323
Depreciation expense and amortisation expenses 32 66 162
Other expenses 33 1,889 2,459
Total expenses 6,236 4,543
Profit / (Loss) before tax {2,896) (3,087}
Less : Tax expense 43
- Current tax - -

- Deferred tax charge (752) (649)
Profit / (L.oss) for the year (2,144} {2,438)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit

or loss in subsequent years:

~ Re-measurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plan (13) (3}

- Income tax effect on above 3 1
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (10) (2
Total comprehensive income for the year (2,154) (2,440}
Earnings per share on equity shares of # 10/- each fully
paid up
Basic and diluted in 38 (2,153) (2,448)
Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting Policies and
accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial
Statememts 1-54
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105146W/MW100621 {\ -

%
los }@Mﬁ*

Bharat Jain D;vesh Bhatt Lokesh Jain
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 100583 (DIN: 08225352) (DIN: 06453254)
Place: Mumbai Mumbai

; “?:} .
Date: 22nd May,2025 ;f” S OT Date: 22nd May,2025




Alder Residency Private Limited
CiN: U45201MH2008PTC 182570
Cash Flow Statement forthe year ended on 31 March, 2025.

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Share of loss from partnership firms / LLP (net)

Sundry balances written off

Interest income (including fair value change in financial instruments)
interest expenses and other financial charges

Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:

Decreasef(increase) in trade receivable and Financial and Other Assets
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, Financial & Other Liabilities and Provisions
Cash generated from operating activities

Direct taxes (paid) / refunds
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, Investment properties, intangible
assets
{Increase} / decrease in other bank balances
Fixed deposit (Made)/Withdrawn
Investment in Partnership firm/LLP - Fixed capital
(Investment) in Partnership firm/LLP - Current account balance
Withdrawal from Partnership firm/LLP - Current account balance
Loans given to related parties
Repayments of loan by related parties
Interest received
Net cash generated from investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-convertibie debentures
Repayment of non-convertible deberitures
Finance Cost
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents/ (bank balance overdrawn) at the end of the year
! year [Refer note 3 below]

Year endec_i
31 March 2025

(T In lakhs)
Year ended
31 March 2024

(2,896) (3,087)
86 162

196 476

- 0
(3.023) (1,348)
2,930 1,323
(2,727) (2.474)
(2,161) (9,826)
(20,598) (13,530}
45522 40,143
20,038 14,313
{413) (275)
19,625 14,038
(870) (1,004)
(1,606) (3,563)
49 (10)

- (0)
(7,364) (6,402)

13,290 .

(19,950) (11,793)
14,231 5,327
1,188 1,348
(1,034) (16,097)
- 50,616
(14,513) (40,107)
(4,359) (8,425)
{18,872) 2,084
(281) 25
1,465 1,440
1,184 1,465




Notes:
1 The abave statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method-as set out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of cash flows".

2 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wheraver necessary, to correspond with current year classificaton,

3 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Cash on hand 7 9
Balances with banks in current accounts 80 444
Deposits with bank having original maturity period of less than three months 1,007 1,012
Cash and cash equivalents {Refer note 12) 1,184 1,465

As per our report of even date

For KKC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 105146WMW1 00621

Bharat Jain

o /D ok >

Partner Devesh Bhatt Lokesh Jain
Membership No. 100583 Director Director

Place: Mumbai {DIN: 08225392) (DIN: 06453254
Date: 22nd May,2025 Murnbai

Date: 22nd May,2025




Alder Residency Private Limited
CIN: 45201 MH2008PTC182570
staternent of changes in eguity for the year ended on 31 ‘March, 2025.

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of Shares Zin lakhs
As-at 31 March. 2025 : 99,616 10
As at 31 March 2624 99,616 10
(i} _Current repotting vear ended March 2025 (% In lakhs)
. .- Changes in equity share| Restated balance at Change in equity | Batance at the end of
?ﬁ;a:lf:r::l:?: t:,er?i::nmega:f capital-due to prior the beginning of the {share capital during| the current reporting
P 9y period errors reporting period the current period period
10 - - - 10
(i) _Previous reporting year ended March 2024 {¥ In lakhs)
. Changes in equity sharei Restated balance at Change in equity | Balance at the end of
thB.n_aligsieoTstr: i;;e::‘nmlgig; capital due to prior the beginning of the |share capital during the previous
P 4 9P period errors reporting period the previous period reporting period
10 - b - 10
B. Other equity ' {¥In lakhs)
For the year ended 31 March 2025 Reserve and surplus
Retained eamings Total
As at 1 April 2024 {4,165) {4,165)
Profit/(Loss) for the year _ (2,144) (2,144)
Re-measurement gains/{iosses) on defined benefit {10} (10}
Total comprehensive income for the yeai (6,319) (6,319)
As at 31 March 2025 . (6,319} (6,319)
For the year ended 31 March 2024 Reserve and surplus
Retained eamings Total
As at 1 April 2023 {1,725 (1,725)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (2,438) (2.439)
Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit {2} {2)
Total comprehensive income for the year (4,165) {4,165)
As at 31 March 2024 {4,165) {4,165)
As per our report of even date : For and on behaif of the Board

As per our repor of even date
For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
iim Registration No.105146WW10082

hes P B

Bharat Jain vesh Bhatt Lokesh Jain
Partner Director Birector
Membership No. 100583 (DIN: 08225392) {DIN: 08453254)
Place: Mumbal Murnbai )

Date: 22nd May,2025 Date; 22nd May,2025




Alder Residency Private Limited
CIN: U4_»_5201 MH2008PTC182570
Notes forming part of the financial statements

1 Comparny information

5

Alder Residency Private Limited (the Company) (CIN: U45201MH2008PTCH 82570) is a Private Limited Company domiciled
in India and is incorporated under the Caompanies Act,1956. The Company's registered office is at 101, Kalpataru Synergy,
Opp. Grand Hyatt, Santacruz (East), Mumbai - 400055. The Company is primarily engaged in Real Estate Activities.

The separate financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”) of the Company for the year ended
31st March 2025 were appraved and authorised for issue by Board of Directors at their meeting held on 22nd May 2025.

1A Basis of preparation

The financial Statements have baen prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
Rules, 2015 and other refevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. '
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and én actrual basis, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair vaiue as explained in accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
anather valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liabllity, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the assat or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

0 {zero) indicates amounts less than a lakh.

The financial statements are presented in T in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

2 Material accounting policies

(2) Current and non-current classification

The Company is engaged in the business of real estate activities where the operating cycle commences with the acquisition
of land / project, statutory approvals, construction activities and ends with sales which is always more than twelve months.
Accordingly, classification of project assets and liabilities inte current and non-current has been done considering the
retevant operating cycle of the project. All other assets and liabilities are classified into current and nan-current based an
period of twelve months. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




(b) Property, plant and equipment
i) Al property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost of acquisitionfinstallation (net of inpuit credits availed) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes cost of acquisition, construction and installation,
taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use and estimated cost for decommissioning of an asset.

it) Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future économic benefit associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

i) Property, plant and equipment is derecognised from financtal statements, either on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property {calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which the praperty, plant and equipmient is derecognised.

iv} Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment and related expenses that are not yet ready
for their intended use at the reporting date.

v) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value method based on the useful life
specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value method based on the useful life
specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii) Sales office cost at site is amortized on straight line basis over the period of useful life i.e. (3 Years) as estimated by the
management based on life of the project.

{c}) intangible assets
i) Intangible assets are carried at cost, net off accumulated amortization and impairment lass, if any.
ii) Intangible assets {Softwares/others) are amartized on straight line basis over a period of three years.

{d) Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net reglisable value. The cost of raw materials (construction materials) is
determined on the basis of weighted average method. Cost of work-in-progress-and finished stock includes cost of land /
development rights, construction costs, allocated barrowing costs and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the
Company. :

{e) Fair value measurement
The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments.
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair valugs. The management
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments,

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest leve! input that is significant to the falr
vafue measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in-active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly orindirectly observable, or

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is-significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

The Company recognises transfers between fevels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which
the change:has occurred.

(f) Financial instruments
I Financial assets
i} Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets either at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) or at amortised Cost, based on the Company's business modal for
managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flows.




)

iif)
aj

c)
d)

iv)

Initia! recognition and measurement

The Cornpany. at iriitial recognition measures a financial asset at lls fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to it's acquisition. However, transaction costs relating to financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL) are expensed in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Subsequent méasurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial asset are classified in four categories:
Debt instrument at @amortised cost

Debt instrument at fair vaiue through other comprehensive Income

Debt instrument at fair value through profit or loss

Equity investments

Déebt instruments

* Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of confractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and Intérest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on such instruments is recognised in profit-or

loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is caleulated using the
effective intersst rate method and is included under the head "Finance income".

» Fair value through other comprehensive income {FvTOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI). Movements in the carying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OC! is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest income from these

financial assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method and is included under the head "Finance

» Fair value through profit or loss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Gain and losses on fair value of such instruments are recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is inciuded in other income.

Equity investments other than investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments other than investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and assaciates at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses
oh equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the statement of profit and loss in the event of de-recognition. Dividends from such investments are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is
estabiished. Changes in the fair value of financial assels at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on'equity investments measured
at FVTOC! are not reported:separately from other changes in fair value,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses, on historical credit experience and forward looking basis, the expected credit losses
associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI! debt instruments, The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit rigk. As per simplified approach, loss
allowances on frade receivables are messured using provisicn matrix at an amount equal fo life time expectsd
losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impalrment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.




V) De-recognition of financial assets
~ Afinancial asset'is derecognised only when:
* The rights fo receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired
* The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset or
* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financiai asset, but
has transferred contro] of the financial asset,

il Financial liabilities
i} Classification
The Company classifies all financial liabilities at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

ii} Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, deposits or as payables, as appropriate. Al financial fiabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, nat of directly attributable transaction costs.

iii} Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held far trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or lass. Einancial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the Purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

b} Loans, borrowings and deposits .
After initial recognition, loans, borrowings and deposits are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process, The EIR amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

c) Trade and other payabies
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the shorf-term maturity of these instruments.

iv) De-recognition of financial liabilities
A finangial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference In the respeclive carrying
amounts is recagnised in the statement of profit or loss.

{g) Cash and cash equivalents
() Cash and cash equivalents. in the balance shest comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposit with
original maturity upto three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

(iiy For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-
term deposit, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft as they are considered as an integral part of
Company's cash management.




() Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from real estate activity
a) In case of under construction units, reveiue from real estate activity is recognised in-accordance with Ind AS 115
'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' on satisfaction of performance obligation on the basis of Company's:
binding contracts with customers, upon fransfer of control of promised products or services to customers for a
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange: for those products or services. The Company satjsfies
-the performance obligation at a “point in time” OR “overtime" depending on the fulfilmentof the criteria as prescribed
in para 35 of the said standard.

As such there being no objective. criteria prescribed by the said Standard for recognition of revenue "over time”, the
Company recognises the revenue based on fulfiiment of part obligation on following criteria:
i. For revenue recognition, only those units are considered where agreement / contract with buyers is executed.

ii. In case, where stage of completion of the project reaches a reasonable level of development.i.e. 25% or more as
supported by physical work report, revenue is recognised on units mentioned in point no {i) above based on actual
cost incurred to the proportion of tofal estimated cost i.e. "project cost method". (Input Method). In case where units
have received occupancy certificate, full revenue is recognized,

iii. In case, where stage of completion has not reached a reasonable level of development mentioned in point no (i}

above, the revenue will be recognised only to the extent of actual cost incurred subject to fulfiliment of point no (i)
above.

In case of contracts with customers where performance obligations are satisfied “point in time”, the Company
recognises the revenue when the customer obtains control of the promised assets which is finked to occupancy
certificate on those units where binding agresment/ contracts with the buyers are executed.

Revenue is recognised net of indirect taxes and comprises the aggregate amounts of sale price as per the
documents entered into. The total saleable area and estimate of costs are reviewed periodically by the management
and any effect of changes therein is recognized in the period in which such changes are determined. However, if
and when the total project cost is estimated to exceed the total revenue from the project, the loss is recognized In
the same financial year.

ii) Profit/loss from partnership firms arnd LLPs
Share of profit / loss from partnership firms and LLPs Ih which the Company is a pariner is accounted for in the financial
year ending on or after the date of the balance ‘shest of the firm.

iif) Interest income
Interest income for all debt instruments; measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
15 recognised using the effective interest rate method.

(i) Foreign currency transactions _
i} Fereign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency (Indian rupes) by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency oh the date of the transaction.

ii) All monetary items denominated in foreign currency are converted into Indian rupees at the year-end exchange rate,
The exchange differences arising on such conversion and on settiement of the trénsactions are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign cumency are
reported using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.




(i} income taxes
The income tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax:
The curmrent tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax:
Defetred tax Is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amourit used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that is probable.that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie that the related tax benefit will be
realised, stch reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are measured at each reporting date and recognised to the extent.that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that wouid follow from the manner in which the Company
expects at'the reporting date to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

(k) Employee benefits
(i} Short-term benefits
Short-term empioyee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and
loss for the year in which the related services are rendered.

(i) Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year
when the contribution to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable
to the fund.

{ili) Defined benefit plans
Defined benefits plans is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which the
employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable determined
using actuarial valuation techniques.

Re-measurement of the net defined beneiit liability, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occcour,

{iv) Other long-term employee benefits
Other long-term benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss at the present value of the
amounts payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques in the year in which the employee renders services:
Re-measurements are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise,




(1} lmpairment of non-financial assets

The: earrying amounts of rion financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the camrying amount exceeds its
recoverable value. The recoverable amount is the greater of an assel's or cash generating unit's, net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to the assets. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss In the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. After
impairment, depreciation is provided on the: revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful .iife, The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed hy crediting the statement of profit-and foss if there has
been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount,

{m) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
{after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares autstanding
during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the periad atfributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except when the resulté would be anti-dilutive.

{n) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of such
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the bormowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective
Interest rate applicable to the respective borrowings,

(o) Leases
At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an asset, the Company assaesses

- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made available to the Company.

- The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout
the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contracts and

- the Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset thioughout the period of use. The Company assaesses
whether it has the right to direct 'How and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
rélevant lease. Initial direct costs incured in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a'lease liability at the lease commencement date. At the comrencerment
date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost which comprises initial measurement of the lease liability, any
lease' payments made at or befare the commencement date, less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site. on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the iease.




Lease Liability-

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of thé lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The fease payments shali be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee's incramental borrowing rate.

Short-term lease and leases of low-value assets-

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilitles for short- term leases that have a lease
term of fess than 12 menths or less and leases of low-value assets, including IT Equipment. The Company recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The election for
short-term leases shall be made by class of underlying asset to which the right of use relates. A class of undetlying asset is
a grouping of underlying assets of a similar nature-and use in Company's operations. The election for leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value can be made on a lsase-by-lease basis.

(p) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present
value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are. discounted using pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

if) A contingent liabiiity is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be canfirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the confrol of the company. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

iii) Contingent assets are not recognized, but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of econoniic benefit
is probable.

q) Audit Trail:
The accounting software used by the Company, to maintain its Books of account have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the
software,

3 A) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions. that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Estimates and judgements are
continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require -a material adjustment to the carrying amount. of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the péricd in which the estimate is revised.




a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

B}

Classification of property

The Company determines whether a property is classified as inveéstment property or inventory:

Investment’ property comprises land and buildings (principally commercial premises and retail property) that are not
occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business,
but are held primarily to eamn rental income ‘and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rénted to tenants
and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business.

Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business: Principally, the Company develops
and intends to sell before or on completion of construction.

Fair value measurement of firiancial instruments

When the fair valués of financial assets and financial liabiiities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active. markets, their fair value is measured using appropriate valuation technigues. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments,

Evaluation of percentage completion

Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates, some of
which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentages of completion, costs to completion, the
expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses o completion. Estimates of project income, as
well as projects costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is recognised in the financial
statements for the period in which such are determined.

Taxes

The Company pericdically assesses its liabilities and contingencies related to incorme taxes for all years open to scrutiny
based on latest information available. For‘matters where it is probable that-an adjustment will be made, the Company
records its best estimates of the. tax liability in the current tax provision. The Management believes that they have
adequately provided for the prabable outcome of these matters.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required-to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits. .

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basls of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial
assumptions include discount rate, trends. in salary escalation and attrition rate. The discount rate is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government securities.

Recent Pronouncement:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March, 2025, MCA has not
notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the company.




Alder Residency Private Limited
CIN: U45201MH2008PTC 182570
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note - 4A
Property, plant and equipment
Building / Construction | Office and cther Computers | Furniture and Total

Sales office | .equipments equipments and Software fixtures '
Gross Carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 - 269 11 12 16 308
Additions 90 880 15 23 5 1,013
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 80 1,149 26 35 21 1,321
Additions - 811 2 34 23 870
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2025 90 1,960 28 69 44 2,191
Depreciation -
Upto 31 March 2023 - 7 3 6 3 18
Charge forthe year 15 154 8 8 4 187
Disposals - - - - - -
Upto 31 March 2024 15 161 11 12 7 206
Chaige for the year 30 313 7 24 5 379
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2025 45 474 18 36 12 585
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2025 45 1,486 10 33 32 1,606
As at 31 March 2024 75 988 15 22 14 1,115 |
Note - 4B
Intangible Assets Goodwill Total
Gross Carrying Value
As at 31 March 2023 390 390
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2024 380 390
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2025 390 390
Accumulated Amortisation
Upto 31 March 2023 260 260
Charge for the year 130 130
Disposals - -
Upto 31 March 2024 350 390
Charge for the year - -
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2025 390 390
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2025 - -
As at-31 March 2024 - -

Note -

be

1 The compahy has capitalised the capital work in progress which includes Sales office/sample flats capitalised during the previousyear,
2 The deprecation of the construction equipment transferred to WP, {Current year - 313 and Previous Year- 154)Lakh.




Alder Residency Private Limited
CIN: U45201MH2008PTC182570.
Notes forming part of the financial statements
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5 Non-current Investments (€ In lakhs)
As at Asg at
31 Mareh 2025 | 31:March 2024
i) Investmentin Capital accounts of limited liability partnerships (LLPF)
Kalpataru Urbanscape LLP 0 1]
Total 0 0
Details of share in limited Hability partnerships (LLP) aré as under :
a)Kalpataru Urban Scape LLP — Total Capital Rs. 1 Lakh
Name of Partaers 31 March 2025 f 31 March 2024
Kalpataru Limited 10% 10%
Kalpataru Retail Venture Private Limited 4% 4%
Alder Residency Pvt Limited 5% 5%
K.C.Holding Private Lirited 11% 1%
Neo Pharma Private Limited T0% 70%
Non-current financial assets
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Deposits with bark having original maturity period of more than twalve months ih 60
{Rs. 10 fakhs {Rs. 60 Lakhs) FD Lien against Bank Guaranatee issted to MPCB).
Total 11 60
Non-current tax. assets As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Balance with government authorities
-Direct tax (net} 813 400
Total 813 400
Deferred tax assets (net}
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Deferred tax assets
Fiscal allowanice on fixed assets 27 {2)
Employee benefits 78 21
Other deductible temporary differences / Brought forward Lossas 1,786 1,118
Total 1,891 1,137
Other non-current assats
As at As at
31 March 2025. | 31 March 2024
Prepaid expenses 444 809
Total 444 909
Inventorles
Asat As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Raw materials 1,276 764
Work-in-progress (Refer Note-29) 86,488 59,375
Total 87,764 60,139
Trade recelvables
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
{Unsecured, considerad good)
Due from Others
-Good 7,188 6,476
-Doubtful: - -
Total 7,198 6,476
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Trade receivable sgeing |

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments

Particulars 6 Months =1

year:

NotDue < & Months

1-2 years I 2-3 years I

>3 years

Tatal

As at 31 March 2025
Undisputed Trade Receivables

~Considéred Good ) - 5,956 472 118

7,198

~Which have significant -
Increase In credit risk - = - z -

—Credit impaired - - - - .

Disputed Tfade Recelvables

—Considéred Good - - - . B

~Which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - -

~Credi fnpaired - . - N "

Trade recelvable ageing

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payments

Particulars 6 Monthis-1

year

Not Due

< 6 Manths l

1-2 years l 23 years

»3 years

Total

As at 31 March 2024
Undisputed Trade Recejvables

—Considered Good - 5,220 92 164 -

6,476

-Which have significant
increase in credit risk - - B - -

~Credit impalred - B - - R

Disputed Trade Receivables

~Considered Good ’ - - - - -

~Which have significant
increase in credit risk - . - . -

—Credit impaired - - - . -

*Note -

1.Abave ageing is derived basis trade receivables which are cutstanding for which bills had been raised as per contract entered with

customers.

Cash and cash equivalents
As at Asat
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Cash-on hand 7 9
Balances with banks in current accounts 80 444
Deposits with bank having original maturity of less than 3 months 1,087 1,012
Total 1,184 1,465
Other bark balances
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Balances with biank in escrow accounts 2,137 3,318
Deposits with bank having original matirity period of more than three months but less than 3,137 350
twelve months
Rs. 50 lakhs (Rs. Nify FD Lien against Bank Guaranatee issued to MCGM)

Total 5,274 3,668

Loans
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans glven
- Related parly (Refer nole 42) 17,126. 9,570

Total 17,126 8,570

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Amountof | Percentage | ‘Amountof | Percentage
Type of Borrower loan to the toral loan. to the total
outstandin Loans. outstanding Loans

Promoters - - - -
Directors. - - - “
KMPs ) - - - -
Related Parties 17,126 100% 9,570 100%
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1)

iy

Iv)

v)

vi)

vii}

Other.current financial assets

Asat As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Current Account of partrership firms/LLPs u 5,926
Deposits
--others 51 49
Total 51 5,975
Other current assets
As at Asat
31 March 2025 { 31 March 2024
Prepaid expenses 1,174 633
Contract cost assels 5,971 4,545
Other receivables
- related parties - 43
- others - 4
Other advances 634 663
Advance to staff 11 2
Total 7,730 5,890
Equity share capltal
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Authorised
Equity shares:
2,00,000 {Previous year 2,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 20 20
Total 20 20
Issued, subscribed and paid up
99,616 {Previous year 99,616) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 10 10
Total 10 10
The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding is set out below:
As at As at
31 March 20625 | 31 March 2024
No. of shares | No. of shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 99,616 99,616
Changes during the year - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 99,616 99,616

Termslrights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value 6f T 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitied to
one vole per share, The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rzpees. The final dividend when proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehaiders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In'the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion fo the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

The details of equity

Name of Shareholder

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Abhiruchi Orchards Private Limited
Number of shares
% of Holding

99,616
100%

99,616
100%)

‘Therg are no benus shares issued or shares issued. for consideration other than cash or shares bought back during five years

preceding 31 March 2025

Details of Shares held by promoters

Asat As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Name of the Promoter: Abhiruchi Orchards Private Limited
Number of shares 99,616 99,616
% of Shareholding 100% 100%
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-Openiing balance (4,165) {1,725)
Add / (less) : Profitf{Loss) for'the year (2,144} (2,438}
items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earning
Re-measurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) {10) {2}
Total 6,315 ~4,165
19 Non-current provisions
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Employee benefits {(Refer note 34) 286 93
Totat 286 93
20 Other non-current liabilitles
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Uneamed financial guarantee comrmiission 202 344
Total 202 344
Current financlal liabilities - Borrowings
As at As at

-

Asat
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Retained earnings

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Secured
Listed Redesmable Non Convertible Debentures

6,500 (6500) redeemable non-canvertible debentures of face value Rs, 87500 each (Rs. 6,308 8,500

1,00,000 each) (Refer Note below)

Unlisted Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures

47,500 redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value Rs, 64,842 each {Refer Note

below) {47,500 redeemable non-convertible debentures of face vatue Rs, 93,684 each) 35,083 44,116
Total 41,39 50,616

Note;

The company has outstanding listed secured redeemable non convertible debentures {"NCD") 6,500 (Previous year -6500) having a
face value of Rs.87,500 (Previous year-Rs. 1,00,000} each and unlisted NCD 47,500 {Previous year -47,500) having.a face value of
Rs.64,842 (Previous year-Rs. 93,684) and tota! outstanding of Rs. 41,390 lakhs {Previous year Rs. 50,616 lakhs). The NCDs are.
secured by a first charge over respective Project with fand and structure. thereof (along with all present and future receivables) of the
company along with group company situated at Andheri, Worll, and Neapeansea Raad, Corporate Guaranfge:from relited parties
and a personal guarantea from the director of the ultimate parent company and pledge over shares of a company. The rate of retum

is 18.75% and are repayable in 8 quarterly Instalments ending in financial year 2027-28.




22 Trade payahles

As at Asat
31 March 2025 | 31 March-2024
{A) Tutal_qu!_standing dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises {Refer note 45). 413 66
{B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,516 156
Total 3,929 222
The defails. about vendors/ suppliers being reported under Micro and Small Enterprises Act, 2006 is based on information available
with the Company.
Trade payable ageing
Particufars cu_ ding of following period from due date of payment
) Not Due <1year 1-2 years 2.3 years >3 years Total
31 March 2025
{IJM3SME 336 77 - - - 413
(ii}Others 1,529 1,862 124 1 - 3,516
(iil} Disputed dues— MSME . . w v R -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - A - - - .
Trade payable ageing
partieulars Outstanding of following period from due date of payment
Not Due <1 year 1-2 yaars' 2-3 years >3 years Total
31 March 2024
{iyMSME aL 25, - - “ 66
[ii}Cihers 78 74 4 - - 156
{lii} Disputed dues ~MSME - - . - T -
{iv} Disputed dues - Others ~ - - - - -
23 Current financial liabilities - Others
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Creditors for axpenses 269 1,338
Current Account of partriership firms/LLPs 196 -
Other payables 1,192 803
Total 1,657 |. 2,147

24 Current provisions

Asat As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Employee benefits .(Refer note 34) 23 8
Total 23 8

25 Other current fiabilities

Asat As at

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Advance from customers 83,317 46,721

Statutery dues 514 498
Uneamed financial guarantee commission 142 310

Total 89,973 47,529




Alder Residency Private Limited
{Formely known as Arman Villas Private Limited)
CIN: U45201MH2008PTC182570

Notes forming part of the financial statements
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28
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Revenue from operations

(% In lakhs)

As at

As at
31 March 2024

Sale of residential units
Sale of materials

31 March 2025

Total - -
Other income
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Financial guarantee commission income 310 86
Sale of Scrap - 2
Flat Canceillation charges 4 11
Miscellaneous income 3 g
Total 317 108
Interest income
As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Interest income an financial assets at amortised cost

- Deposits 91 38
-Loans 2,823 1,305
- Flat 6 2
Interest on income tax refund 3 3
Total 3,022 1,348
Cost of sales and other operational expenses
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Work-in-progress 59,375 38,985
Raw material 764 | 368
Opening stock 60,139 39,353
Add : Expenses incurred during the year
Purchase offand and development rights 2,532 3,737
Project execution expenses 14,605 4,459
Consultancy fees 192 450
Other project expenses 1,126 2,450
Qverheads 2,141 2,235
Depreciation 313 154
Finance costs (Refer note 31) 6,717 7,301 |
27,625 20,786
Less: - Work-in-progress 85,488 59,375
- Raw material 1,276 764
Closing stock {Refer note 10) 87,764 60,139
Total - -




30

Employee henefits expense

As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Salary, allowances and. bonus 1,286 573
Contributionte provident and other funds 64 26
Staff welfare expenses 1 0
Total 1,351 599
31 Finance costs
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Borrowings 7,780 8,252
- Others 1,582 218
Bank and aother financial charges 285 154
9,647 8,624
Less : Transferred to cost of operations (Refer note 29) 8,717 7,301
Total 2,930 1,323
32 Depreciation expense
As at As at
31-March 2025 | 31 March 2024
-« Property, plant:and equipment 379 186
- Intangible assets - 130
379 316
Less : Transfered to cost of operations (Refer note 29) 313 154
Total 66 162
33 Other expenses
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Soft Services 30 28
Rates and taxes 1 2
Electricity charges 30 25
Repairs and maintenance 56 B
Loss from Partnership firm (LLP) 196 476
Rent 122 120
Legal and professional fees 20 33
Business support services 47 6
Conveyance and traveliing 12. 12
Printing and stationery’ 3 2
Auditors' remuneration
- Audit fees 5 1
- Tax audit fees - 0
- Other matters 3 -
Sundry Balances w/off - o
Advertisement and marketing expenses 1,352 1,732
Security Charges 4 4
Miscellaneous expenses 7 11
Tofal 1,889 2,459
7 e
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Alder Residency Private Limlted
CIN: Li45201 MH2008PTC1 82570
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 34 Disclosures pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 19 TEmployea Benefits™

The employees' gratuity scheme is a unfunded defined banefit pian. The present value of obligation is determined based ¢n actuarial valuation using tha projected

unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit

build up the final abligatien. The obligation for leave éncashment is recognised in the same mannar as gratuity,

(i} Gratuity expenses recognised during tho'year In the statement of profitand loss

Current and past service cost
Interest cost

(i} Expenses recognised during tha yearin other comgprehensive Income {OC)

Actuarial (gainMiosses on obligation for the year
Net {income)/expenses for the year recognised In OCI

(i} Nst liability recognised in the balance sheet
Falr value of plan assets
Prasent value of obligation

Liabifity recognised in balance shest

(v

—

Reconcillation of opening and ciesing balancas of defined banafit obligation (Gratulty unfunded}

Defined bensfit obligation atthe baginning of the year
Current and past servica cost

Intarast cost

Not liability on transfered in 7 Gut {net)

Aciuarial (gain} / loss on cbligation

Benefits pald

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

(v} Aétuarial assuriptions

Mortality table - Indian Assured Lives

Discount rats (per annum)
Rate of escalation in salary {per annum)
Attrition rate

(v) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption and ite impact on projected banefit oblig

of employea benafit eritilament and measures each unit separately to

[ Xin lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
] 17
13 8
51 22
31-Mar-25 31 March 2024
13 3
13 3
31-Mar-25 31 March 2024
(261) {85)
{261) (85)
1-Mar-25 31 March 2024
85 72
a8 17
13 8
132 4
13- 3
{19) {14)
‘2_(_51 85

Particulars

Projecied benefii cbiigation on current investmant
Effact of + 1% change in rate of discounting

Effect of - 1% changa in rale of discounting

Effact of + 1% change in mte of salary increase
Effect of - 1% change in rale of salary increase
Effect of + 1% change in rate of employea lurnover
Effact of 1% change In rate of employes tumaver

(vil) Maturity analysis of projected banefit obligation

Projected benefils payabie in future years from the dato of reporing
1st following year

2nd follewing yaar

3rd following year

AMh follawing year

Sth following year

Sum of years 6o 10

Sum of years 11 and above

31 March 2025

31 March-2024

201244
(Urban)
%
5%
5%

aro as follows ;
31 March 2025

261
(16)
19
19
17
1

m

2012-14
{Urban}
%
5%
5%

31 March 2024
a3
(6)
7

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

20
19
50
12
22
04
228

{vill) Leave encashment recognized as an expanse and includad in Note-30 under ‘Employes benefits expense” is ¥ 5 lakhs (€ 8 lakhs).
{x) The astimate of fulure salary increase in the actuarlal valuation is considered after faking Into account the rate of Inflation, saniority, prometion and other rafevant

factors, such as supply and demand in the smploymant market.
(x} Contribution to providant and other funds Is recognised as an expense in Nata 30 of the financial statemants.

§
)

i

g i
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Alder Residency Private Limited
CiN: U45201MH200BPTC482570
Notes forming part of the financlal statements

Note-35 Cantingent labllities and commitments (to tha extent not pravidad for}

8} Financial Guaranten
The 'Company has given corporate guarantees alang with group companies amounting to 2 1,50,000 Lakh {T '2,22,000 Lakh) to various
Banks/Financial instilutions for credit facilities granted to related parties. Loans outstanding against these quarantees as at 31 March 2025 is ¥
1,00,500 Lakh (% 132,070 Lakh), '

b) Bank guarentee issued of T 60 Lakh (60 Lakh).

¢} The Company does not have any long-tarm eoniracts Including derivalive cortracts on which thera are feresesatla losses which are not provided.

Note-36  Coltaterall Security pledge
The canying amount of asssts pledged/mortgaged as securities for barrowings of the Company and loans availed by fellow subsidiary and
enterpiises coptrilied by the hofding are as urder

{¥in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Invenicrios 87,764 60,139
Trade Recelvables 7,198 6476
Total 94,962 66,615

Nofe-37  Segment information

Disclosure unde Ind AS 138 - 'Operating Segmants' is not givan as, in the cpinicn of the managemen, the entire business activity falls under cne

segmant, viz,, Real Estate Activitles, The Cempany conducts lis business in only one Geographleal Sagment; viz., India;

Nota -38 Leasss

?he'Cumpaf_\y.has siacted nol ta recognise- right of use asset and lease liabiljty as.par the provisions of Ind AS 118 - "Leasas”, considering the
leases being short term and lvase aof low valus assel. The Company has taken commercial premises under cancelable oporating lease agreaments.
Leasa expenditure for tancelable operating leases is facognised over the period of lease. Tha initial period for lease is generally for thirty six months.

Total lease rent expenses for the parlod is ¥ 122 Lakhs (® 120 lakhs).

Note - 33 Eamings per share (EPS)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a} Prafit/{loss) after tax (T in lakhs} [2,144) (2.438)
b) Profit availabis for distribution to equity shareholders (¥ in takhs) {2,144) (2438
©) Weighled average number of equity sharés outstanding {No.) 99,646 99,616
d) Faca valua of equity shares (¥) 10 10
e) Basic and diuted earping per share (%) {2,153} {2,448)

Note - 40 Detalls of loans given, investments made; guarantees given and securitles pravided covared uis 186{4) of the Companies Act,

a} The Company is engaged in‘the business of Real Estate Development which is clagsifiod under Infrastructural facilities as specified under Schedule
Vi of the Companies Act, 2013 {the 'Act’) and hence the provisions of Saction 186 (excapt sub section 1) of the Act islated to loans/guatantees given
or securities provided are not agpiicabla to the Campany.

b) Thera are no investments, excapt as given in riote 5

Nato - 41 Financial sk management objectives and palici

The Cempany’s principal financial fabilitias comprise baowings and trade and othar payables. The main purposa of these financial liablities is lo
finance and suppert the Company's operations, Tha Campany's principal financial assats includa cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from
its aparalions.

The Company is exposed to market fisk, cradit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior managemant ovarseas the management of thase risks.
The Company's senfor management ensures that the Company's financial risk dctivities ana governed by approgriate policigs and preeedures and
that financial risks are identified, measurad and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objactives. The Soerd of Diroctors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,

Fi fal Risk Manag t

The Company has exposura fo the following risks arising fram financfal instrumenls;
(i) Market Risk.

(i} Tredit Risk and

{iil) Liquidity Risk

A Market sk
Market risk ariges fram the -Company's use of interest bearing financial instruments. . It Is"the risk that tivo falr value or futura cash flows of a financial.
instrurnent will fluctuate bacause of changes in Intarest rates {intarest rate risk) or other market factors. Financial instruments affectad by market risk
faciude bomowings.

—

Interest rata risk

Inferest rata risk is tha risk that the fair valua or fulure cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate basause of changes in market interest rates,
The Company's exposure fo the risk of changes in market inferest: rates relatas primarily to tha Gompany’s debt obligations with floating interest
rates. Tha.management is responsible for the manitoring. of the Company’s interast rate pesition. Diffarent variables are considered by the
management in structuring the Company's berrewings to achive a raasonabls, competilive, cost of funding.

P

Do




b}

a}

)

.

Interest rato senslitivity )
Company does note have any floating rate borrowing so with all other variables held constant, the effect of change-in tha interest rate on floating rate
borowings Is nil.

Currency tisk
Currency risk is not matarial, ds the Company's primary busingss activities are within India and does not have significant exposure in foreign

Cradit risk
Cradit risk is the risic'that counterparty will not meet fis obligalons unds a firancial instrument or customer coniract, leading ta a financial loss, The.

Company is axposed lo credit risk fraim its operating activities {prmatily frada racalvables) and from its ather dclivities.

Trada recelvables

The Company's exposure to credit tisk I3 infuenced mainly by the individua$ characteristics of sagh customar.

Ageing of trade receivables are as foflows [¥ In lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Lessthan 6 Months - 5,956 6,220

Mora than 6 Months 1,242 256
Total 7,158 6,476

Financial Instrumant and cash depasits

With respect to credit fisk arising from tha ather financial assefs of the Cornpany, which comprise bank balances, cash, loans fo relatad parties and
other parties, other receivables and depdsits, the Company's exposure to credit risk arises from dofault of the counterparly, with a maximum exposure
equal to the camying amount of these assets.

Credi risk from balances with banks.is managed by Company's treasury ir accerdance with the Company’s policy. The Company liils.its exposure
to credit isk by cnly placing bafances with local banks. Given the profiie of its bankers, management does not expect any countarparty fo fall in
meeling its abligations.

Liguidity risk .

Liquidity risk i3 the rsk that the Company wiy not be eble fo meet its financial obligations as thay fall due. The Company manifors its risk o a
shortage of funds using a racurring liqiidity planning tosl. This toal consi the maturiy of both its i ial investmen's and financial assefs (0.g.
trade racaivables, other fi ial assets) and projected cash flows from operations.

The cash flows, funding requirements and iiquidity of Company is monilofed srider the control of Treasury team. The cbjective is fo optimize tha
efficiercy and effeclvanass of the management of the Company's capital resnurces. The Company's chjective is to maintain a balance betwean
continulty. of funding and barrowings. The Company manages Fquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and borowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecasted and actusd cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilitias.

The Company cumently has sufficient cash on demand to meet expeciad operational p , including the servicing of financial obligations,
The table below surnmarisas the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contraciual undiscaunted payments:
{ €l lakhs)
Contraciual cagh flows
Less than 103 3to5
1 year yoars yoars > 5 yaars Tatal
As at
31 March 2025
Bun_uwi'ngs . 2,738 38,653 - - 41,391
Trade payables 3,929 - - - 3,929
QOther financial iabifities 1.857 - - - 1,857
Ag at
31 March 2024
Barrowings - 3r.116 13,500 - 40,616
Trade payablas 222 - - - 222
Other financial liabilities 2,147 - - - 2,147

Capital management
For the purpesa of Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and other equily reserves attributabla {o the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Campany's Capital Management is to maximize sharehclder value,

The Company manages is capital structurs and makes adjustments in light of changes In economic conditiens and the requirements of the finandial
covenants. The Campany monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by tolal equity plus net debt,

{®.In jakhs}
31-March 2025 31 March 2024

Bomrowings {long-term and short-term, Including current matarities of long term borrowings) 41,391 58.616.
Less; Cash and cash equivalents (1,184} {1.465)
Net debt ‘40,208 49,152
Equity share capital 10 10
Chher equity {6,319} {4,165)
Total Equity (5,309} {4,155)
Total equity and net debt 33,897 44,998
Gaaring ratio 119%) 108%,

No changes wera made in the abjectives, policies or processes for maneging capital during the period anded 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,




Alder Residency Private Limited
CIN: U45201 MHZOOSPTC_1_8_2570
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note - 42 Disclosure as per IND AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’

Ultimate Holding Company
Kalpataru Limited

Helding company
Abhiruchi Orchards Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries of ultimate holding company
Abacus Real Estate Private Limited

Amber Orchards Private Limited

Amber Enviro Farms Private. Limited

Ambrosia Enviro Farms Private Limited

Ambrosia Real Estate. Private Limited

Anant Orchards Private Limited

Arena Orchards Private Limited

Arimas Real Estate Private Limited

Astrum Orchards Private Limited

Axiom Orchards Private Limited

Azure Tree Envire Farms Private Limited

Azure Tree l.ands Private Limited

Azure Tree Orchards Private: Limited

Kalpataru Retail Ventures Private Limited

Kalpataru Constructions (Poona) Private Limited
Kalpataru Gardens.Private Limited

Kalpataru Land (Surat) Private Limited

Kalpataru Land Private Limited

Kalpataru Properties (Thane) Private Limited

Kalpataru Homes Private Limited

Kalpataru Hill Residency Private Limited

Kalpataru Properties Private Limited

Agile Real Estate Privaie Limited

Agile Real Estate Dev Private Limited

Ananta Landmarks Private Limited

Ardour Developers Private Limited

Ardour Properties Private Limited

Kalpatary Residency Private Limited (formerly known as Munot Infra Development Private Limited) (w.e.f. 20 March 2024)
Kalpataru Townships Private Limited (formerly known as Ashoka Agro Farms Private Limited (w.e.f. 31 May 2023.)
Aspen Housing Private Limited {(w.e.f. 31 May 2023)
Kalpataru Property Ventures LLP {Ceased fo be fellow subsidiary w.e.f. 12 March 2024)

Firms/Enterprises controlled by the Uitimate holding / holding company
Kalpataru Plus Sharyans
Kalpataru Constructions (Pune)

Key management personnel / directors
Devesh Bhatt

Lokesh Jain

Venktesh Gajanan Bhandare

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year or balances outstanding at the period/
Kalpataru Urbanscape LLP

Klassik Viny! Product LLP

Argos Arkaya Power Solution

Property Salutions (1) Private Limited

Parag P-Munot

Jic




Transactions with Related Parties (% In lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest income 2,922 1,306

Ultimate holding company

Kalpataru Limited - 276

Fellow subsidiaries

Kalpataru Land Private Limited 420 233

Agile Real Estate Pvi. Ltd. 1,531 293

Arimas.Real Estate Private Limited 326 81

Partnership Firm.

Kalpataru Urbanscape LLP 845 423

Sale of materials and services

Fellow subsidiaries 0 -

Agile Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 0 R

Reimbursement of Expenses paid 1 1

Ultimate holding company

Kalpataru Limited 1 1

Business Support Services Expenses 47 5

Ultimate holding company

Kalpataru Limited A7 5

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 73 -

Fellow Subsidiary

Arimas Real Estate Private Limited 1 -

Kalpataru Retail Ventures Private Limited 72 -

Purchase of materials and services/TDR 64 400

Uitimate holding company

Kalpataru Limited 3 -

Fellow Subsidiary

Agile Real Estate Pvt.Lid. 1] -

Anant Orchards Private Limited ]

Arimas Real Estate Private Limited - 0

Kalpataru Homes Private Limited 1 -

Kalpataru Retail Ventures Private Limited 1 -

Kalpataru Properties Private Limited - 370

Firms/Enterprises controlled by the Ultimate holding / holding company

Kalpataru Constructions (Pune) D -

Other related party

Property Solutions ([) Private Limited 59 30

Kiassik Vinyl Product LLP 0 0

Loan given 19,950 11,000

Uitimate holding company

Kalpataru Limited - 408

Fellow subsidiaries

Kalpataru Land Private Limited 2,463 4,092

Agite-Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 17,487 4,900

Arimas Real Estate Private Limited - 1,600

Loan given repaid 14,231 5,327

Ultimate holding company

Kalpataru Limited - 3,760

Feliow subsidiary

Kalpataru Land Private Limited 5,197 1,567

Agile Real Estate Pvi. Lid. 9,034 -




31-Mar-25 31 March 2024
Financial guarantee commission income ' - 740
Fellow subsidiaries
Kalpataru Properties Private Limited - 500
Arimas Real Estate Private Limited - 132
Kalpataru Homes Private Limiteéd - 108
Financial guarantee commission expenses 155 620
Ultimate holding company
Kalpatary Limited 155 -
Holding company
Abhiruchi Orchards Private Limited - 207
Fellow subsidiaries
Kalpataru Properties Private Limited - 207
Kalpataru Gardens. Private Limited - 207
Cross Guarantee! Security jointly provided by the company - 222,000
the Company together with ultimate holding company,fellow subsidiaries and other
related parties has given guararitee and provided cross collateralized security in
favour of debenture trustee for the facilities availed by the following entities.
Fellow subsidiaries
Kalpataru Properties Private Limited - 1,50,000
Kalpataru Homes Private Limited - 32,500
Arimas Real Estate Private Limited - 39,500
Cross Guarantee /Security jointly provided for the company 15,500 2,000
the following entities have given guarantee and provided cross collateralized
security in favour of debenture trustee for the facility availed by the company.
Ultimate holding company
Kalpataru Limited 15,500 -
Holding company
Abhiruchi Orchards Private Limited
Fellow subsidiaries - 62,000
Kaipataru Properties Private Limited
Kalpataru Gardens: Private Limited
Share of Profit/ (L.oss) from partnership firms/LLPs {196} (476}
Partnership Firm
Kalpataru Urbanscape LLP (196} (476)
Capital account in partnership firms/LLPs - 0
Partnership Firms
Kalpataru Urbanscape LLP - 0
Investment in current account of partnership firms/LLPs 7,364 5,979
Partnership Firm
Kalpataru Urbanscape LLP 7.364 5,879
Withdawal from current account of partnership firms/LLPs 13,290 -
Partnership Firm
Kalpataru Urbanscape LLP 13,290 -




Closing Balances with Related Parties

31-Mar-25 31 March2024.
Loan given 17,126 8,571
Fellow subsidiaries _
Kalpataru Land Private Limited - 2,734
Aglle Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 15,131 5164
Arimas Real Estate Private Limited 1,005 1,673
Cther Receivables - 43
Ultimate helding company
Kalpataru Limitad . 43
Advance Given 0 -
Other related party
Argos Arkaya Power Solution 0 -
Other Payables - 234
Holding company
Abhiruchi Qrchards Private Limited - 234
Trade Payables - 367
Kalpataru Properties Private Limited - 367
Cross Guarantee/ Security jointly provided by the company 1,50,000 2,22,000
The Company together with ultimate holding company,fellow subsidiaries and other
related parties has given guarantee and provided cross collateralized security in
favaur of debenture trustee for the facilities availed by the following entities.
Fellow subsidiaries
Kaipataru Properties Private Limited 1,50,000 1,50,000
Kalpataru Homes Private Limited - 32,500
Arimas Real Estate Private Limited - 39,500
Cross Guarantee /Security jointly provided for the compary 62,000 62,000
The following entities have given guarantee and provided cross collateralized
security in favour of debenture trustee for the facility availed by the company.
Ultimate holding company
Kalpataru Limited
Holding company
Abhiruchi Orchards Private Limited 62,000 62,000
Fellow subsidiaries
Kalpataru Properties Private Limited
Kalpataru Gardens Private Limited
Guarantee_lSecurti'e_s issued on Company's behalf by
Guarantee given by director of holding company
Capital account in.partnership firms/LLPs ] 0
Partnership Firms
Kalpataru Urbanscape LLP 0 0
Current account in partnership firms/LLPs debit / {credit) 196 5,926
Partnership Firms
Kalpataru Urhanscape LLP 186 5,926

Notes:

i} All related party fransactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and are on arm's length basis.
if) No amount in respect of related parties have been written off / written back during the year, nor has any provision been made

for doubtful debts / receivables during the year.

iii) Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.




Alder Residency Privafe Limited
CIN:-U4520IMH2000PTC182570 )
Notes forming part of the financfal statements

Note - 43 Taxatlon

a) The major components of Income tax for the perlod ended 31 Mareh 2025 are as under:

1} Income tax related to ltems recognised directly In fireflt or loss of the Statement of profit and loss diring the

yaar
___{%®Inlakhs)
31 March 2025 ; .31 March 2024
Current tax
Current tax on profis for the year - -
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - -
Total current tax exponse - M
Deferred tax .
Relating {o origination and reversal of temporary differences (152) (849)
MAT Credit Reversal - -
Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit and loss {752) (649}
I} Deferred tax related to ltems recognized In other comprehensive iIncoma {OCI) during the year
(€ in lakhs)
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2034
Deferred tax on remeasurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plan 3 1
Deferred tax chargéd to OCI 3 1
b) Raconciliation of tax expensa and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
(€ in lakhs)
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Accounting profit/{iosses) before tax {2,846) (3,087)
Income tax @ 25.157%{25.167%)} 729) (777}
Adjustment for expenses disallowed under income tax act -
Adjustmant for expenses aliowed under incoma tax act 729 T
Adjustment In respect of current incomé tax in respect of previous years - -
Cthers - -
Current tax provision - -
<) Deferred tax rolates to tha following! (¥ [ lakhs)
Retognized In'the statement of
Balance-Sheet ohofit and loss Recognized In OC!
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 [31 March 2025 {31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) Taxable temporary differences
Ancillary cost on bormowing - - - " - -
Total (a)
b) Deductible tamporary differences
Depreclation on property, plant, equipment 27 3 (24) (8) - -
Unused $ax losses 1,786 1,108 {678) {539) - -
Employee benefits / expenses allowable ori payment basis 78 26 {49) 4 3 i
Total (k) 1,891 1,137 {751} {649) 3 1
Net deferrod tax (assets)iiabliities
Deferred tax charge/{cradit) 1,891 1,137 {751} (649! 3 1

d} Provision for current tax has not been made due to foss during the year.
e} Tha company has accounted for Deferred tax in accordance with accounting standard.




Alder Residency Private Limited

CIN: U45201MH2008PTC182570

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note - 44 Fair value measurement

a} Financial instruments by category (% in iakhs)
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial assets Amortised cost Amortised cost
Non-current
Other financial assets 11 60
Investments t] 0
Current
Trade receivables 7,198 6,476
Cash and bank balances 6,459 5,133
Others financial assets 51 5,975
Loans 17,126 9,570
Total financial assets 30,845 27,214
Financial liabilities
Current
Borrowings 41,391 50,616
Trade payables 3,929 222
Other financial liabilities 1,657 2,147
Total financial liabilities 46,976 52,985

Notes:

i) Financial instruments carried at amortised cost such as cash and margin money deposit, other receivables, trade
payables, borrowings and other current financial instruments approximate their fair values.

i) For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

o




Alder Residency Private Limited
(Formaly known _as_Arman Villas Private Limited)
CIN; U45201MH2003PTC 182570

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note - 45 Disclosure as required indér Micro Sihall.and Medium Entérprises Development Act, 2006

(¥ in lakhs)
Patticulars . ] 31 March 2025 31'March 2024 ~
The principal amount &interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier ) 461 4.
The amaount of intérest paid by the Tuyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of payment mae to the suppliér - .
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
The amaunt of interest due and paysble for the perod of delay in making payment {which have been pald but beyend the = -
appointed date during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED act, 2006
The amourit of intérest actrued and remaining unpaid-at the end of each dccounting yoar. 7 1
The amount of further Interest remaining dtin ‘and payabla even in-s:.icceedir!g years; uniil such.date when the interest] - -
dues as above are actually paid to small enterprises; for the purpose of disallowance as a dediictible expenditure under
section 23,
Inciudas MSME related to creditors for expenses of Rs, 41 Lakhs (Rs. 27 Lakhs)
Note - 46 Disclosure of various ratlos
31 March 2025 M March 2024
+Currant Ratio Current assets 1,26,387 93,183
Current liabilitiés 1,36,973 1,800,524
*Debt:Equity Ratio ngl Debt 41,341 50,616
Shareholders equity {6,309) (4,156)
*Debt Service Coverage Ratio Eaming ivakiable for debt services {2.923) {2,985)
Dabt sarvices 41,391 50,618
*Return on Equity Ratio Net profit aftér taxes - Preferance Dividend (2:144) {2,435
Average Shareholder's Equity (5,232) {2,835)
+inventory tumover ratio Cost of yoods sold or Sales - -
Averaga nventory 73,952 49,745
~Trade Receivable Tumover ratio Net Credit Sales - -
Average Accaunts Recejvables 8,837 4,032
*Trada Payabla Turmover ratio Mat cradit purchase 20,586 13,530
Awverage Trade payables 2,075 389
*Net Capital Turrover Ratio Notsales - -
Waorking Capital (10,585) (7,341)
+Net Profit Ratio Net prafit {2,896} (3,088)
Net Sales - =
*Return on Capital Employed Eaming before interest and taxes (2 989) {3,128
Capilal Employeg 15,232) {2 936)
*Retum on investrment Dividend - -
Ratlos as at 31'March 2025 31 March 2024 Varlance |[Remarks
[ - Ratlcs
{a) Current Ratio, 1 1 0% -
{b) Debt-Equity Ratio, {7y {12} —46% Bue to decrease in botrowings
(c) Debt Service Coveraga Ratia, (3] [O]] 21%
{d) Retum on Equity Ratio, Not Applicable
(e} Inventory tumover ratio, Not Applicable
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, Not Applicable
(g) Trade payables tumover ratio, 10 | 35 | -T1% Due ta increase in frada payable
(h).Net capital tlimover ratio, Not Applicable
{f) Net profit ratio, Not Applicable
{i} Retum on Capital employed, 57%[ 107%| -48% Due to decreasa in borawings
{ky Return o investment. 1 Not Applicable
All above raflo are In terms of times unlass-ctherwise menfioned.

As the Company recognises its revenue overtime, the numbers of Revenla & its rolated information may not strictly be comparable over the periods, hence required ratios ara
alsa hot strictly comparable. .

47 - Other notes

To the best of information of management of the Camparty; the disclosure requirements to be given pursuant to Gazette notifcation for Amendments in Schedul Il to
Companles Act, 2013 dated 24 March 2021 pertaining to tha foliowing matters are either distlosed or not applicable to the company:

1. Disclosure on Revaluation of property, piant and equipmert-and intangible assets from Registered Valuers is nat applicable to company..

2, No proceeding has been Initiated or pending againist the Company for holding any benami progerty under tha Banami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1888 ("45" of 1988) and
ruies made thereundar. ’

3. The Company has not been deciared a witful defautter by any bank or financlaf institution or ather lender.

4. As per clause (87} of section 2 and_ section 186 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules mads thereunder, ihe campany is in compliance with the number of layars-as
permitted under the said provisions. ) )

5. The Company daes not have any transaction with struck off Comparies. )

6. The Company has nat cammied oirt any Scheme which ia‘approved by regulatory autherities during the period.

7. The Company has nof traded or ivested in Crypto curraricy or virtiial currency diring the financlal period.

8. There are no transactions recorded in books of account reflecting surrender disclosura f income in the assessment under Income Tax Act, 1961,

Note - 48 .

Tha Incdme Tax Depariment {'the Department”) conducted a Search activity {"the' search”) under Section 132 of tha lhcome Tax Act (the Search’) at' premises: of the
Campany. during August. 2023, Gonsaquent to'tha Séirch, assessment/ reassessment proceadings have been initiated by tax authorties for certaln assessment years, the
said assessments ara in process.

Note - 49
a) To the best of our kn:mdedge_s & belief, no-fund (which are-material either individually or n the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (sither from bomdwed
funds o share premium or any other seurces or:kind of funds) by the company fo or in‘any other person(s) or entity{les), including. farelgn-entity ("Intermediarias™); with the
understaniing, whether recorded In wriing or otherwise, that the. Intermeidiary shall, whether , directly or indirectly land ‘or invest in other persons. 6t entities idenitified Inany
manner whatsoaver by er on behat of the company ("Utimate Beneficiarias”) of provided any guarantes, séctitity or the fike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. ;

ﬁh 4




b) To the best of aur knowledge & belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
erity(ies), including foreign entity ("funding parties”), with ihe understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwiss, that the Company shall, whether, direcily or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified jn any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the funding parties {"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guaranlee, security
or the like an behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries.

Note - 50
In view of accounting losses made by the company due to real estate ravenue tecogniton accounting method and resultant complete erosion of natwoerth of the company, the
holding campany has given its assurance to arrange dhe required financial support to maintain the Company as guing concesm,

Note - 51

The accounting sofiware used by the Company, to maintain its' Beoks of dccount have z fealure of recording audit teail (edit log} faciity and the same has been operated
throughout the year for ail transactions recorded in the software. The Company has an established process of regularly identifying shoricomings, if any, and updating
techriological advancements and features including audit trail. The shertcomings identified during the course of audit are heing reviewed and corrective action is being taken
whergvar reguired

Note - 52
No dividend is declared & paid during the current financial period.

Note - 53- Events after reporting date
‘There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financiat statements.

Note - 54
Previous yéar figures have been regrovped / reclassified, wherever necessary, if any, to correspond with current perind classification. Figures in brackels pertaining fo previous
year.

As per our report of aven dale

For KKC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
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